
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@mijackson.org 

DATE: April 21, 2022 

TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

PLACE: Lenawee Room |Human Services Bldg. 
 1040 S. Winter Street 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the March 17, 2022, Meeting [ACTION]  .................................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #22-04 — Franklin Township text amendments [ACTION]  ............................................  7 

(2) #22-05 — Franklin Township text amendments [ACTION]  ..........................................  17 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) — None 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 
b. New Business — None 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

Please note that the meeting will take place in person at the new time of 6:00 pm. 
The location is the Lenawee Room of the Human Services Building (1040 S. Winter Street). 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission is scheduled for May 19, 2022. 

 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #1 

mailto:gbauman@mijackson.org


This page is intentionally blank. 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #2 



  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, March 17, 2021 

Lenawee Room ● Lenawee County Human Services Building ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee County Commission; Ms. Carrie Dillon, Educa-
tion Representative; Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair; Mr. Bruce Nickel; and Mr. 
Ralph Tillotson, Lenawee County Commission  

 Members Absent: Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC Secretary; and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary; and Stephen Bezold, R2PC 
Associate Planner 

Item 1 Call to order. Chair Liedel called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Those in attendance 
joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mr. Bauman introduced Mr. Bezold, the new R2PC Associate Planner, to Commissioners, ex-
plaining that he will be involved in land use and transportation planning efforts in the Region. 
The Commissioners introduced themselves to Mr. Bezold. 

Item 2 Public comment. None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 03/17/2022 meeting agenda for approval. 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to approve the March 17, 2022, 
meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 12/16/2021 meeting minutes for approval. 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the December 16, 
2021, meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) #22-01 | Ridgeway Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a 

property (#RD0-203-3900-00) to ‘Light Industrial (LI)’. Staff summarized his report 
advising Commissioners to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning, noting 
that there are also several properties on the south side of M-50 within the Township 
that will remain an island of ‘Agricultural 1 (AA-1)’ zoning at some point in the future 
(see the staff report). Comm. Tillotson voiced his concern over the open drain flow-
ing through the property. 

 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
March 17, 2022, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

Comm. Tillotson made a motion, seconded by Comm. Dillon, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the subject prop-
erty (#RD0-203-3900-00) to ‘Light Industrial (LI)’ to the Ridgeway Township Board 
(see the staff report and these minutes). The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #22-02 | Woodstock Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of a 

property (#WD0-110-3025-00) to ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’. Staff summa-
rized his report advising Commissioners to recommend approval of the proposed re-
zoning of the entire property (see the staff report). Comm. Liedel voiced her concern 
regarding wetlands protection. Comm. Nickel explained that the wetlands must be 
identified and protected prior to the issuance of a building permit on the property. 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Dillon, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the entire subject 
property (#WD0-110-3025-00) to ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ to the Wood-
stock Township Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

(3) #22-03 | Woodstock Township. Commissioners reviewed the proposed rezoning of 

the approximately northernmost three acres of a property (#WD0-110-3575-00) to 
the ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-3)’ district. Staff summarized his report advising 
Commissioners to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning (see the staff re-
port). 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Nickel, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the approximately 
northernmost three acres of the subject property (#WD0-110-3575-00) to ‘Highway 
Service Commercial (C-3)’ to the Woodstock Township Board. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s). None. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s). None. 

Item 6 Other Business. 

a. Old Business. None. 

b. New Business. 

(1) Election of 2022 LCPC Officers. Staff reminded Commissioners that Comm. 
Liedel is currently serving as Chair of the LCPC and Comm. Dersham is currently serv-
ing as its Secretary. 

Comm. Bolton made a motion, seconded by Comm. Tillotson, to retain the 2021 slate 
of officers for 2022. The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) 2021 LCPC Annual Report. Staff submitted the 2021 LCPC Annual Report for 
approval and submittal to the County Board of Commissioners. 

Comm. Nickel made a motion, seconded by Comm. Bolton, to approve the 2021 LCPC 
Annual Report. The motion passed unanimously. 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #4 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
March 17, 2022, Meeting Minutes Page 3  
 

Item 7 Public Comment. None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment. Staff reported that he spoke with County Administration about 
holding LCPC meetings at the newly renovated Old Courthouse. Although possible, there are 
logistical problems regarding automatic locks and afterhours meetings. Consequently, LCPC 
meeting will continue to be held in the Lenawee Room of the Human Services Building. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 6:50 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, LCPC Recording Secretary 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #5 



This page is intentionally blank. 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #6 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #22-04 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 
 Date: April 14, 2022 

 Proposal: Text Amendments to the Franklin Township Zoning Ordinance regarding agriculture 

Analysis and Advisement 

Background – The Franklin Township Planning Commission wishes to amend the Zoning Ordinance to 

allow for various agricultural-related uses that may make farming more profitable. Specifically, the Plan-
ning Commission proposes to: 

 Add “seasonal u-pick”, “Christmas tree farms”, and “community supported agriculture (CSA) 
leased gardens” to the listing of permitted uses in the Agricultural (AG) district – Section 7.02. 

 Add “agricultural tourism as regulated in Section 4.31” to the listing of conditional uses in the 
Agricultural (AG) district – Section 7.03. 

 Add regulations/standards for the development of “agricultural tourism” – Section 4.31 

 Add definitions for “agricultural tourism” and “community supported agriculture” – Section 
21.01.3A and Section 21.01.23A, respectively. 

Section 4.31 provides: 

 An intent statement. 

 Permission for a listing of permitted ancillary uses (e.g., ciders mills, seasonal outdoor activities, 
petting farms, picnic areas, etc.) as long as the income from them represent less than 50% of the 
gross sales of the farm. 

 Permission for a gift shop as long as its income represents less than 25% of the gross sales of the 
farm. 

 Required minimum standards regarding: lot size, number of attendees, buffer area and plant-
ings, off-street parking, and operational information (e.g., ownership, site plan, signs, number of 
employees, etc.). 

Subsection 4.31.2 refers to Section 18.14, which does not exist. This citation should be corrected or re-
moved. There are no definitions for “seasonal u-pick” or “Christmas tree farms”. 

LCPC Staff Advisement – Based upon the above analysis, staff ad-

vises the County Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL 
WITH COMMENTS of the proposed text amendments to the Frank-
lin Township Board, noting the need to correct the errant Section 
18.14 citation. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the Township. 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #7 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #8 

gbauman
Typewriter
22     04



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #9 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #10 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #11 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #12 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #13 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #14 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #15 



This page is intentionally blank. 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #16 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

Coordinated Zoning Report | #22-05 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 
 Date: April 14, 2022 

 Proposal: Text Amendments to the Franklin Township Zoning Ordinance regarding setbacks 

Analysis and Advisement 

Background – The Franklin Township Planning Commission wishes to amend the Zoning Ordinance to 

clarify that setbacks are measured from “lot lines”. Specifically, the Planning Commission proposes to: 

 Add “defined in Article XXI” to the end of the sentence comprising Subsection 16.02.B. Section 
16.02 contains footnotes to the schedule of regulations (i.e., area, height, bulk and placement 
regulations (Section 16.01)). 

 Amend Section 21.01.84 by replacing a reference to “street of right-of-way” with “lot line”. Sec-
tion 21.01.84 provides a definition for “setback”. 

 Amend Section 21.01.98 by removing references to “property line” and “right-of-way”, and leav-
ing references to “lot line”, from Subsections A, B, and C. Section 21.01.98 provides a definition 
for “yard, required side-rear-front”. 

The proposed amendments simply remove ambiguity from existing definitions, specifying “lot lines”, 
which is defined in Section 21.01.51. 

LCPC Staff Advisement – Based upon the above analysis, staff ad-

vises the County Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL of 
the proposed text amendments to the Franklin Township Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the Township. 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #17 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #18 

gbauman
Typewriter
22     05



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #19 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #20 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #21 



04/21/22 LCPC Agenda Packet Page #22 




